Annual report tender questions – The National Lottery Heritage Fund
Can you confirm which level you require the WCAG 2.1 web accessibility guidelines to be applied?

AA level

What resources have been allocated to drafting, editing and proofreading of copy and will the successful bidder have any input on how the content works in relation to the proposed visual approaches?

Drafting, editing and proofreading will all be done in-house at the Heritage Fund. The layout of the content is largely dictated by government guidance so there is little opportunity for changes in section chronology and content.

In the specification it states that you can provide indicative turnaround times for rounds of amends - would it be possible to have these please?

This will vary as the project progresses. The first and second round of amends will be turned around in roughly 4-5 working days. Later amends are three days with some additional amends between 24-36 hours.

Are you looking for more of a design evolution or a revolution. What’s your appetite like for change?
We are keen to use our refreshed brand throughout the Heritage Fund annual report to the best of its ability, and our web colours in the National Heritage Memorial Fund annual report. We are open to exploring the scope of our new brand guidelines (for the Heritage Fund). Though bearing in mind any impacts of design on accessibility and government requirements. 
What are the word or page limit counts for each report? Are there any major changes in terms of page quantities from previous years?
The content for this year’s report is still being written but the content will follow the same sections as previous years so the word count will likely remain in the same area. As a rough guide, previous years were:
National Heritage Memorial Fund (English): 35,000 words
National Heritage Memorial Fund (Welsh): 39,000 words
National Lottery Heritage Fund (English): 46,000 words
National Lottery Heritage Fund (Welsh): 51,000 words
Please use this word count basis for quotes but please also note that this may not be the final word count. The National Heritage Memorial Fund report will have additional pages as we have more case studies this year than previous years (please see below for details)
Links to previous reports: 
National Heritage Memorial Fund: https://www.nhmf.org.uk/about-nhmf/annualreports
The National Lottery Heritage Fund: Annual reports | The National Lottery Heritage Fund
The tender details the reports will be the same size in terms of pages as the previous year but with some case studies added. How many were you thinking of adding and how many pages roughly should we allow for these?
Last year we had 4 case studies. This year we will have up to 25 case studies. Historically we allow a spread per case study but we may need to have two or three case studies to a spread – with an occasional spread for certain case studies.
The tender says there are two reports per years – is there an additional report that you do mid year?
We create one report for our National Lottery work – under ‘The National Lottery Heritage Fund’ and one for our grant in aid work under ‘National Heritage Memorial Fund’. We create English and Welsh versions of each of these, so four reports in total. This is what this tender is for – the four reports. We do not currently create any other annual reports or reviews in the year. 
Please indicate key dates of production
The official publication schedule is TBC but some rough timelines are indicated below. The dates for both The National Lottery Heritage Fund and National Heritage Memorial Fund reports are the same:
Contract awarded: 1 April 
Design concepts created based on last year’s content: Up to 22 April
This year’s copy provided: 3 May
First proof: 20 May
Second proof: 9 June
Third proof: 20 June
Insert signatures and National Audit Office certificate: 10 July
Final accessible versions provided: 14 July
Welsh translation typeset: Between 1-30 August
Welsh translation amends: 9 September
Final accessible Welsh versions provided: 28 September
If 40% is the maximum value for price, what does 40 marks from that represent and how is 50% equivalent to full marks? What is the remaining 50% awarded for?
Please note corrected typo on original ITT. 50% should read 40% under price criterion. 
· 40 marks will be awarded to the lowest priced bid and the remaining bidders will be allocated scores based on their deviation from this figure. Your fixed and total costs figure in your schedule of charges table will be used to score this question.
· For example, if the lowest price is £100 and the second lowest price is £108 then the lowest priced bidder gets 40% (full marks) for price and the second placed bidder gets 36.8% and so on. (8/100 x 40 = 3.2 marks; 40-3.2 = 36.8 marks)
· The scores for quality and price will be added together to obtain the overall score for each Bidder.
The remaining 60% is made up of quality marks. The quality breakdown is listed in the tender document.
Is it obligatory that we present our costs within the format of the schedule of charges table? Or can we provide our full breakdown of costs as per design and production rates?
Costs should be provided in the schedule of charges table where possible.
What are considered to be ‘additional assumptions’ in the pricing submission?

Potential provider might assume the Fund would provide material free of charge to undertake proofing. There are many things that a provider might assume in order to push a low price. This is our standard wording to prevent unusual requirement variations.

fIs the budget to cover the scope of work as outlined for 12 reports in total over 3 years period? 
Yes, that’s correct. 
1: 2021-22 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (English)
2: 2021-22 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (Welsh)
3: 2021-22 National Heritage Memorial Fund (English)
4: 2021-22 National Heritage Memorial Fund (Welsh)
5: 2022-23 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (English)
6: 2022-23 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (Welsh)
7: 2022-23 National Heritage Memorial Fund (English)
8: 2022-23 National Heritage Memorial Fund (Welsh)
9: 2023-24 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (English)
10: 2023-24 The National Lottery Heritage Fund annual report (Welsh)
11: 2023-24 National Heritage Memorial Fund (English)
12: 2023-24 National Heritage Memorial Fund (Welsh)
Are you able to share the Heritage Fund brand guidelines at this stage?

Please see attachment section

The work includes liaising with printers – do you have printers you would prefer us to use or are we looking to source one?
We have a printers that we use and we would need the supplier to liaise with them, when necessary, to provide proofs and sort any printing proof errors. 
Can you clarify what you mean by ‘proof reading for design-related issues’?
We would look for the reports to be proofed (though not for grammar, spelling or style). We would need things like page numbers to be double checked, make sure that all columns of tables have entries etc. 
